
 

  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

Agenda 
 

The February 2018 meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District 
will be held will be held on Thursday, February 15, 2018 at 6:00 pm at the Steele Memorial 
Library, 101 E. Church St., Elmira, NY 14901 The agenda for the meeting is listed below.  If 
you are unable to attend, please inform Mr. O'Dell-Wehling (585-332-9672), Mrs. Santulli (733-
8607), or Mr. Shaw (733-8611).   

 
1.  Call to order  
2.  Pledge of allegiance 
3.  Approval of minutes (document #2018-07)   
4.  Treasurer’s report 
 a) Financial report (document 2018-08)  
 b) Report of Unpaid Bills Detail (document 2018-09)  
5.  Correspondence  
6.  President’s report  
7.  Director’s Report 

Consent Item: Approval of Personnel Actions (Appendix C).  
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve Personnel actions as submitted. 

8.  Committee reports:   
a)  Executive Committee (O'Dell-Wehling)  
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (Meeting Cancelled) 
b)  Budget & Finance Committee (Schamel) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2018-10)  
Commissioner as submitted. 

 c)  Building & Grounds Committee (Muldoon) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting  (Meeting Cancelled) 
d) Election Committee (Rogan) 
 i) Financial report 
 ii) Proposed revised charter 

 e) Personnel Committee (Kappanadze)  
10.  Old business    
 Robloxx Discussion  
11.  New business   
12.  Period for public expression  
13.  Adjournment  



(Minutes of the JANUARY 18, 2018 meeting of the Chemung County Library District 
Board of Trustees. Document #2018-07) 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00pm by President William Wehling. Present were Pat 
Silvernail, Ann Hayes, Pamela Larnard, Bonnie Chollet, Jack Schamel, Michael Muldoon, 
Marge Kappanadze, Lillian White, Phyllis Rogan, Karl Schwesinger, Tim Blandford, 
Martha Smith and Jared Myers.  Excused:  Venitra Clark. Also present were Joan Santulli 
and Ron Shaw, the Library District’s Administration. 
 
 
The following trustees took their oath of office:  Pat Silvernail – District #1, Bonnie Chollet 
– District #5, Phyllis Rogan – District #10, Karl Schwesinger – District #12, and Martha 
Smith – District #14.   
 
Minutes.  The minutes of the December 2017 meeting (Document #2018-01) were 
presented for board review. Minor corrections were listed. The minutes were approved as 
corrected by unanimous consent.   
 
Financial  Report. The December 31, 2017 Financial Report (Document #2018-02) was 
presented for board review. Mr. Schamel stated that the Administration should be 
commended as the expenditures came in less than budgeted. Mr. Schamel moved, seconded 
by Mr. Myers to approve the Financial Report as distributed.  VOTE: Unanimously 
Approved.    
 
Report of Unpaid Bills (Document #2018-03). Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. 
Rogan that the board authorizes the payment of the unpaid bills dated 1/10/18 – General 
Fund - $48,192.83 as distributed in writing.  

 
Correspondence.   Director Shaw reported a thank you note with a $50 donation for the 
Steele Library hosting the Wednesday Chess Club.    The Wednesday Morning Club sent a 
thank you to Jennie Lewis for her lively and informed discussion held at a recent meeting.  
 
President’s Report.  Mr. Wehling stated that there are three open slots on the sign-up sheet 
for a board member to attend the monthly Labor-Management meeting.  The sheet was 
passed around for board members to sign up. Mr. Wehling also stated that the Buildings & 
Grounds Committee is in need of a new member. 
 
President Wehling asked the status of a new Strategic Plan for the Library District.  Mr. 
Shaw reported that a staff committee has been working on it since last October.  They are 
developing a questionnaire that patrons will be able to fill out.  If the preliminary report is 
ready, he will send it to board members next week. 
 
Consent Item: Approval of the Revised Election and Continuity Committee Charter.  
Resolved by Ms. Larnard, seconded by Mr. Muldoon that the CCLD Board of Trustees 
approves the Charter as submitted in writing. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  
 
 
Director’s Report.   Mr. Shaw discussed the following: 
Consent Item: Acceptance of Friends of the Chemung County Library District donation.  
Resolved by Ms. Silvernail, seconded by Mr. Rogan that the CCLD Board of Trustees 
accepts the Friends of the Chemung County Library District donation in the amount of 



$16,000 as submitted. VOTE: Unanimously Approved. Director Shaw will designate use of 
the donation for 2018. 
 
Consent Item: Acceptance of Hansen Family Foundation donation. 
Resolved by Mr. Muldoon, seconded by Ms. Chollet that the CCLD Board of Trustees 
accepts the donation of $5,000 from the Hansen Family Foundation as submitted. VOTE: 
Unanimously Approved. The funds have been designated for Audiobooks, DVD’s and 
Educational DVD’s.  
 
Consent Item: Approval of Loanable WIFI Hotspot Mini-Grant Agreement.  
Resolved by Mr. Schwesinger, seconded by Mr. Muldoon that the CCLD Board of Trustees 
approves the grant agreement with the Southern Tier Library System as submitted and 
authorizes the board president to sign the agreement. VOTE: Unanimously Approved. The 
Library District’s share of the expense is $467.98.  Details on the manner in which to loan 
out the devices have not yet been spelled out.  Four other libraries, along with CCLD, have 
been awarded this grant. 
 
Consent Item: Approval of Personnel Actions (Appendix C).  
Resolved by Mr. Schwesinger, seconded by Ms. Silvernail that the CCLD Board of Trustees 
approves the Personnel actions as submitted in writing.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
One other item needing board approval is the donation of 300 shares of AT&T stock, a 
donation of $11,338.23 to be utilized for NonFiction materials.  Ms. Kappanadze moved, 
seconded by Mr. Schwesinger to accept the stock donation. VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
Regarding the computer game “RoBlox”,  computer stats on usage and time continue to 
decline.  The Youth staff has requested that the block on the game be lifted.  Discussion 
ensued regarding what defines censorship and where does the board draw the line.  The 
game itself is innocent; it is the users that may be utilizing the game for wrong purposes.  
The board would like the Youth staff to come up with a process on how to address the issue 
of using the game for wrong purposes and/or bad behavior if the game is reinstalled. Mr. 
Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. Smith to table this decision until the next meeting. 
VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
The Director's Report (Appendix A) and the CCLD Staff Reports (Appendix B) for last 
month were submitted in writing to the board.  

Executive Committee.  The report of the Executive Committee was presented in writing to 
the board (Document #2018-04). President Wehling had nothing further to report. 

Budget & Finance Committee.  The report of the Budget & Finance Committee meeting 
was presented in writing to the board (Document #2018-05). Mr. Shaw passed around the 
December 31, 2017 report for the Public Library Foundation of Chemung County 
(Horseheads) which shows a current balance of $561,727.49 in their account.  
 
The Fund Balance Report for December 31, 2017 was distributed in writing.   Ms. Smith 
moved, seconded by Mr. Blandford to accept the report as submitted.  VOTE: Unanimously 
Approved. 
 
 
Buildings & Grounds Committee. The report of the Buildings & Grounds Committee 
meeting was presented in writing to the board (Document #2018-06).  Regarding the “Space 



Needs Summary” submitted by Kimberly Bolan, she included conceptual floor plans which 
combine the best uses of library space at the Steele Library.  Mr. Muldoon stated that the 
Buildings & Grounds Committee will review the report line by line.  The Teen Space 
portion contained in the report is the original size she recommended.  
 
The agreement with Barber Funeral Home for parking at the Horseheads Library continues 
to be in the hands of their attorney.  The repairs to the Bookmobile doors have been 
completed.  
 
Election Committee. Ms. Rogan stated that the Committee needs to be aware of any board 
members who do not plan to run for election in 2018.   
 
Personnel Committee. Ms. Kappanadze stated that the evaluation of the Library District 
Director will take place soon with the final review to be submitted to the board at the May 
meeting.  Current members on the Committee include Ms. Chollet, Mr. Myers, Mr. Schamel 
and Ms. Kappanadze.  
 
New Business.  Ms. Silvernail stated that she plans to attend the February 8th meeting being 
held at the Big Flats Town Hall with our New York State Elected Officials.  It is an 
opportunity to thank them for giving CCLD the Bullet Aid and to request Legislative 
Support for Library Funding in 2018.  The Governor has again made more cuts for library 
funding in his 2018 budget document.  She encouraged board members to attend.  If you 
plan to attend, please email Brian Hildreth at STLS. The meeting starts at 10:30 a.m. 
 
Ms. Silvernail reported on the recent meeting she attended for the Friends of CCLD.  Their 
annual book sale continues to be in limbo and they are discussing new ways to hold a sale.  
Their Spring “Books Sandwiched In” has been scheduled for the end of March and 
beginning of April.  
 
Mr. Shaw submitted a listing from the IT Department of Computers and other electronic 
items that need to be discarded as they are either broken or outdated.  Mr. Schamel moved, 
seconded by Mr. Myers to approve the list as submitted.  Vote: Unanimously Approved.  
The Steele Library is holding an Electronic Recycling Drive the last Saturday of January at 
which time these items will be disposed of.  
 
Public Expression.  None 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:16pm. The next regular meeting of the board will be held 
on Thursday, February 15th, 2018 at 6:00pm at the Steele Memorial Library, 101 East 
Church Street, Elmira, New York. 

















Document #2018-10 
 
Report of the February 14th, 2018 meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District.  
 
Attending the meeting were CCLD board members Jack Schamel, Lillian White and Marge 
Kappanadze. Also attending were Joan Santulli and Ron Shaw, CCLD Administration. The 
meeting opened at 8:00am.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the January 31st, 2018 Final Financial Report to the Committee. The 
Report will be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the Unpaid Bills Detail dated 2/7/18 for the General Fund - $34,351.23 
and Grant Fund - $1,199.47 AND the Unpaid Bills Detail dated 2/14/18 General Fund 
$29,805.51.  Due to the fact that the Executive Committee meeting was cancelled this month, 
several of the invoices are being paid late which results in late fees, interest charges and the loss 
of any discounts for early payment. The Unpaid Bills Details will be forwarded to the full CCLD 
board for its consideration.  
 
Ms. Santulli also showed the Committee a copy of the 2017 Annual Report to the State.  Prior to 
being submitted, this report will need to be approved by the board at the February meeting. 
 
Mr. Shaw reported receipt of the following donations:  For the support of the 2018 Maker Faire, 
CCLD has received $1,000 from the Community Foundation, $2,000 from the Southeast Steuben 
Library (Corning) and $2,000 from the Southern Tier Library System (STLS).  The Library 
District also received a check from Chemung County in the amount of $2,889,056.99 which 
represents the total amount expected in Tax Revenue for 2018.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:15am.  The next meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee will 
be held on Wednesday, March 14th, 2018 at 8:00am in the Petrie Conference Room of the Steele 
Memorial Library.   



 

  

 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

To: CCLD Board of Trustees  

 

From: Ronald W. Shaw, Director 

 

Date: February 14, 2018 

 

Subject: Approval of Personnel Actions  

 

 

Promotions: 

 

Change FT/PT Status: 

John van Otterloo- PT Makerspace Clerk to FT Microcomputer Technician February 26 

 

End of Probationary Period- Permanent Appointment: 

N/A 

 

New Hires: 

Hannah Page- PT Library Page effective 2/12 

 

Resignations: 

 

Terminations: 

N/A 

 

Leave: 

N/A 

 

Step Increases: 

Robert Manchester- PT Library Page to Step 3 

 

 


	Agenda 2018-02
	Document 2018-07
	Document 2018-08
	Document 2018-09
	Document 2018-10
	Appendix C Personnel Actions February 2018

